Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission
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MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
)
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)
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)




)


vs.

)
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)

RALPH V. WILLIAMS, d/b/a 
)
RALPH WILLIAMS TRUCKING, 
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Ralph Williams violated state law and federal regulations.

Procedure


On June 24, 2005, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint alleging that Williams violated state law and federal regulations.  Williams was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by personal service on August 11, 2005.  Williams filed no answer to the complaint.  


We convened a hearing on the complaint on November 17, 2005.  Assistant Counsel Kim S. Burton represented the MHTC.  Neither Williams nor anyone representing him appeared.  
Findings of Fact

1.  During June and August 2004, Williams had a 1998 Mack dump truck with a gross vehicle weight rating of 80,000 pounds.  The gross vehicle weight rating is a rating assigned to 
the vehicle by the manufacturer as to what the vehicle is rated to haul.  This truck was designated as Williams’ Unit # 330 and was used in interstate commerce.  (Tr. at 43-44.)
Count I


2.  On August 16, 2004, Williams allowed his driver, Eric F. Jones, to drive Unit # 330 although Williams had not received a verified negative controlled substance test result for Jones.  Driving a commercial motor vehicle is a safety sensitive function.  
Count II


3.  On June 9, 2004, Williams allowed Jones to drive Unit # 330 even though Williams had not implemented a random controlled substance/alcohol testing program.  
Count III


4.  On June 25, 2004, Williams allowed Jones to drive Unit # 330, but Williams failed to maintain a driving record in Jones’ qualification file.  
Count IV


5.  On June 25, 2004, Williams allowed Jones to drive Unit # 330, but Williams failed to maintain a medical examiner’s certificate in Jones’ qualification file.  
Count V


6.  On June 9, 2004, and June 25, 2004, Williams allowed Jones to drive Unit # 330 without requiring a record of his duty status.  
Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear this complaint.
  The MHTC has the burden of proving its case by “clear and satisfactory evidence.”
 

The MHTC’s complaint cites §§ 622.550, 390.041.5, and 390.201, as well as 11 CSR 30-6.010, as authority for the MHTC to enforce federal regulations.  


Section 622.550 provides:  

[T]he officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations only within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.  

(Emphasis added).  Effective July 11, 2002, § 226.008.3 abolished the former division of motor carrier and railroad safety and transferred its powers and duties to the Department of Transportation, which is under the charge of the MHTC.


Section 390.201 is similar to § 622.550:  

[T]he officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations wholly within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.  
(Emphasis added).

Our order of November 9, 2005, denying the MHTC’s motion for summary determination, raised a question as to the proper interpretation of the phrases “only within the terminals” and “wholly within the terminals,” as used in these statutes.  At the hearing, the 
MHTC’s investigator testified that the MHTC has no “road-side jurisdiction” in enforcing the federal motor carrier safety regulations; that all meetings, contacts, inspections, and audits are conducted at the carrier’s terminal or office; and that this is what was done in this case.  (Tr. at 38-41.)  Therefore, we need not resolve any legal issue as to the authority of the MHTC’s enforcement personnel.    

  
Section 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004, provides:
  


1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation. . . .

(Emphasis added).  Section 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004, is specific in defining “commercial motor vehicle” as defined in 49 CFR § 390.5, and applies to violations of 49 CFR Parts 390 through 397.
  Sections 622.550 and 390.201 also apply to enforcement of violations of federal regulations, but are broader in scope because they apply to violations of 49 CFR parts 350 through 399.  The MHTC’s complaint asserts that Williams violated 49 CFR §§ 382.301(a), 382.305, 391.51(b)(2), 391.51(b)(7), and 395.8(a).  Counts III, IV, and V also assert that Williams violated § 307.400.  


49 CFR 390.5 provides:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.]

*   *   *

For-hire motor carrier means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.

*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire carrier or a private motor carrier.[
]

Our order of November 9, 2005, denied the MHTC’s motion for summary determination because the record did not show that the vehicle in question was a commercial motor vehicle.  Based on the evidence presented at the hearing, we conclude that Unit # 330 was a commercial motor vehicle because it had a gross vehicle weight rating of 80,000 pounds and was used in interstate commerce. 
Count I


49 CFR 382.103 provides:

This part [382] applies to every person and to all employers of such persons who operate a commercial motor vehicle in commerce in any State[.]

49 CFR § 382.301(a) provides:  
(a) Prior to the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions for an employer, the driver shall undergo testing for controlled substances as a condition prior to being used, unless the employer uses the exception in paragraph (b) of this section.  No employer shall allow a driver, who the employer intends to hire or use, to perform safety-sensitive functions unless the employer has received a controlled substances test result from the MRO or C/TPA indicating a verified negative test result for that driver.


Driving a commercial motor vehicle is a safety sensitive function.  The complaint asserts that Williams allowed Jones to drive a commercial motor vehicle on August 16, 2004, even 
though Williams had not received a verified negative controlled substance test result for Jones.  The MHTC’s Exhibit 16 asserts that Jones operated Unit #330 in violation of 49 CFR § 382.301(a) “on numerous occasions.”  The exhibit then asserts that Jones drove Unit # 330 on a haul on August 16, 2004, and that Williams was notified verbally by Jones on August 17, 2004, that Jones’ pre-employment drug testing came back positive for cocaine.  The fact that Jones gave notice of positive test results to Williams on August 17, 2004, does not necessarily mean that Williams had no negative test results on file on August 16, 2004.  These two things are not the same.  However, the exhibit shows that Jones was operating the unit in violation of 49 CFR 
§ 382.301(a) “on numerous occasions.”  Although the MHTC’s proof is not a model of clarity, we infer that August 16, 2004, was one of those occasions.  Therefore, we conclude that Williams violated 49 CFR § 382.301(a).

Count II


49 CFR 382.305 provides:

(a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section. Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.

Williams allowed Jones to drive when Williams had not implemented a random controlled substance/alcohol testing program.  We find that Williams violated 49 CFR § 382.305(a).

Count III


49 CFR 391.1(a) provides: 

The rules in this part [391] establish minimum qualifications for persons who drive commercial motor vehicles as, for, or on behalf of motor carriers.  

49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) provides:

(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:
*   *   *

(2) A copy of the response by each State agency concerning a driver’s driving record pursuant to § 391.23(a)(1)[.]
49 CFR § 391.23 provides:  

(a) Except as provided in Subpart G of this part, each motor carrier shall make the following investigations and inquiries with respect to each driver it employs, other than a person who has been a regularly employed driver of the motor carrier for a continuous period which began before January 1, 1971:
(1) An inquiry into the driver’s driving record during the preceding 3 years to the appropriate agency of every State in which the driver held a motor vehicle operator’s license or permit during those 3 years; and
(2) An investigation of the driver's safety performance history with Department of Transportation regulated employers during the preceding three years.
(b) A copy of the driver record(s) obtained in response to the inquiry or inquiries to each State driver record agency required by paragraph (a)(1) of this section must be placed in the driver qualification file within 30 days of the date the driver’s employment begins and be retained in compliance with § 391.51. If no driving record exists from the State or States, the motor carrier must document a good faith effort to obtain such information, and certify that no record exists for that driver in that State.  The inquiry to the State driver record agencies must be made in the form and manner each agency prescribes.
(c)(1) Replies to the investigations of the driver’s safety performance history required by paragraph (a)(2) of this section, or documentation of good faith efforts to obtain the investigation data, must be placed in the driver investigation history file, after October 29, 2004, within 30 days of the date the driver’s employment begins.  Any period of time required to exercise the driver's due process rights to review the information received, request a previous employer to correct or include a rebuttal, is separate and apart from this 30-day requirement to document investigation of the driver safety performance history data.

Williams did not maintain Jones’ driving record in the driver’s qualification file.  We find that Williams violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2).  


Section § 307.400.1, RSMo Supp. 2004, provides that it is unlawful to operate any commercial vehicle unless such vehicle is equipped and operated as required by CFR Title 49, Parts 390 through 397.  Our order of November 9, 2005, raised an issue as to how the failure to maintain documentation in a driver’s qualification file relates to the equipping and operation of a commercial motor vehicle.  We note that 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) appears in CFR Title 49, Chapter III, Subchapter B:  “Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations.”  Williams did not appear at the hearing and has not contested the issue.  The MHTC established that Williams violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2).  Because Williams violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2), we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, and that Williams thus violated § 307.400.1, RSMo Supp. 2004.  
Count IV


49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7) provides:

(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:
*   *   *

(7) The medical examiner’s certificate of his/her physical qualification to drive a commercial motor vehicle as required by 
§ 391.43(f) or a legible photographic copy of the certificate[.] 

49 CFR § 391.43(f) provides:  

The medical examination shall be performed, and its results shall be recorded, substantially in accordance with the following instructions and examination form. Existing forms may be used until current printed supplies are depleted or until September 30, 2004, whichever occurs first.

Williams did not maintain a medical examiner’s certificate in the driver’s qualification file.  We conclude that Williams violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7).  Because Williams violated 
49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7), we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, and that Williams thus violated § 307.400.1, RSMo Supp. 2004.   
Count V

49 CFR § 395.8(a) provides:    
Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraphs (a)(1) or (2) of this section.
49 CFR 395.8(a) applies to drivers of commercial motor vehicles.  Williams allowed Jones to drive a commercial motor vehicle on June 9, 2004, and June 25, 2004, without requiring a record of his duty status.  We find that Williams violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) twice.  Because Williams violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a), we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, and that Williams thus violated § 307.400.1, RSMo Supp. 2004.   

Summary


Williams violated state law and federal regulations.  

SO ORDERED on January 30, 2006.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP 


Commissioner

	�Section 621.040, RSMo Supp. 2004; § 622.320.  Statutory references are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri unless otherwise noted.


	�Section 622.350.


	�The version of § 307.400 applicable in this case was the version that was amended in 2003.  L. 2003, H.B. No. 371, A. We cite the version of the statute in the 2004 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri, despite the fact that the statute was amended again in 2004.  The 2004 amendment is to subsection 7 and does not affect the text of subsection 1.  L. 2004, S.B. Nos. 1233, 840 & 1043, A.


	�Prior to its amendment in 2003, § 307.400 defined “commercial motor vehicle” according to the definition in § 301.010.


	�Recent amendments to this regulation do not affect these definitions.
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